

1 in an amount not to exceed ~~\$8,658,100~~ \$16,658,100 for this purpose before July 1,
2 2003, and an amount not to exceed \$22,858,100 for this purpose on and after July 1,
3 2003.

4 ***b2118/1.2* SECTION 977e.** 20.866 (2) (ze) of the statutes is amended to read:
5 20.866 (2) (ze) *Historical society; self-amortizing facilities.* From the capital
6 improvement fund, a sum sufficient for the historical society to acquire, construct,
7 develop, enlarge or improve facilities at historic sites, but not including the
8 Wisconsin history center. The state may contract public debt in an amount not to
9 exceed \$3,173,600 for this purpose.

10 ***b2118/1.2* SECTION 977h.** 20.866 (2) (zgh) of the statutes is created to read:
11 20.866 (2) (zgh) *Historical society; Wisconsin history center.* From the capital
12 improvement fund, a sum sufficient for the historical society to construct a Wisconsin
13 history center. The state may contract public debt in an amount not to exceed
14 \$131,500,000 for this purpose.

15 ***b0593/6.21* SECTION 977n.** 20.866 (2) (zj) of the statutes is amended to read:
16 20.866 (2) (zj) *Military affairs; armories and military facilities.* From the
17 capital improvement fund, a sum sufficient for the department of military affairs to
18 acquire, construct, develop, enlarge, or improve armories and other military
19 facilities. The state may contract public debt in an amount not to exceed ~~\$20,417,300~~
20 \$22,421,900 for this purpose.

21 ***-0739/1.1* SECTION 978.** 20.866 (2) (zn) of the statutes is amended to read:
22 20.866 (2) (zn) *Veterans affairs; self-amortizing mortgage loans.* From the
23 capital improvement fund, a sum sufficient for the department of veterans affairs for
24 loans to veterans under s. 45.79 (6) (a). The state may contract public debt in an
25 amount not to exceed ~~\$2,020,500,000~~ \$2,120,840,000 for this purpose.

1 ***b0593/6.22* SECTION 978b.** 20.866 (2) (zp) of the statutes is amended to read:

2 20.866 (2) (zp) *Veterans affairs; self-amortizing facilities.* From the capital
3 improvement fund, a sum sufficient for the department of veterans affairs to acquire,
4 construct, develop, enlarge or improve facilities at state veterans homes. The state
5 may contract public debt in an amount not to exceed ~~\$15,941,000~~ \$29,520,900 for this
6 purpose.

7 ***b0593/6.22* SECTION 978h.** 20.866 (2) (zx) of the statutes is amended to read:

8 20.866 (2) (zx) *State fair park board; board facilities.* From the capital
9 improvement fund, a sum sufficient for the state fair park board to acquire,
10 construct, develop, enlarge, or improve state fair park board facilities. The state may
11 contract public debt in an amount not to exceed ~~\$3,887,100~~ \$13,587,100 for this
12 purpose.

13 ***b0593/6.22* SECTION 978p.** 20.866 (2) (zz) of the statutes is amended to read:

14 20.866 (2) (zz) *State fair park board; self-amortizing facilities.* From the
15 capital improvement fund, a sum sufficient to the state fair park board to acquire,
16 construct, develop, enlarge, or improve facilities at the state fair park in West Allis.
17 The state may contract public debt not to exceed ~~\$44,787,100~~ \$84,787,100 for this
18 purpose.

19 ***b0853/1.5* SECTION 978s.** 20.867 (3) (bm) of the statutes is created to read:

20 20.867 (3) (bm) *Principal repayment, interest, and rebates; HR Academy, Inc.*
21 A sum sufficient to reimburse s. 20.866 (1) (u) for the payment of principal and
22 interest costs incurred in financing the construction of a youth and family center for
23 HR Academy, Inc., in the city of Milwaukee, and to make the payments determined
24 by the building commission under s. 13.488 (1) (m) that are attributable to the

1 proceeds of obligations incurred in financing the construction of a youth and family
2 center for the HR Academy, Inc.

3 ***b2116/1.9* SECTION 978t.** 20.867 (3) (bt) of the statutes is created to read:

4 20.867 (3) (bt) *Principal repayment, interest, and rebates; Discovery Place*
5 *museum.* A sum sufficient to reimburse s. 20.866 (1) (u) for the payment of principal
6 and interest costs incurred in financing the construction grant under s. 13.48 (32r),
7 and to make the payments determined by the building commission under s. 13.488
8 (1) (m) that are attributable to the proceeds of obligations incurred in financing the
9 construction grant under s. 13.48 (32r).

10 ***-1464/2.57* SECTION 979.** 20.867 (3) (h) of the statutes is amended to read:

11 20.867 (3) (h) *Principal repayment, interest, and rebates.* A sum sufficient to
12 guarantee full payment of principal and interest costs for self-amortizing or
13 partially self-amortizing facilities enumerated under ss. 20.190 (1) (j), 20.245 ~~(2)~~ (1)
14 (j), 20.285 (1) (ih), (kd) and (km), 20.370 (7) (eq) and 20.485 (1) (go) if moneys
15 available in those appropriations are insufficient to make full payment, and to make
16 full payment of the amounts determined by the building commission under s. 13.488
17 (1) (m) if the appropriation under s. 20.190 (1) (j), 20.245 ~~(2)~~ (1) (j), 20.285 (1) (ih), (kd)
18 or (km) or 20.485 (1) (go) is insufficient to make full payment of those amounts. All
19 amounts advanced under the authority of this paragraph shall be repaid to the
20 general fund whenever the balance of the appropriation for which the advance was
21 made is sufficient to meet any portion of the amount advanced. The department of
22 administration may take whatever action is deemed necessary including the making
23 of transfers from program revenue appropriations and corresponding appropriations
24 from program receipts in segregated funds and including actions to enforce

1 contractual obligations that will result in additional program revenue for the state,
2 to ensure recovery of the amounts advanced.

3 ***-1464/2.58* SECTION 980.** 20.867 (3) (k) of the statutes is amended to read:

4 20.867 (3) (k) *Interest rebates on obligation proceeds; program revenues.* All
5 moneys transferred from the appropriations under pars. (g) and (i) and ss. 20.190 (1)
6 (j), 20.245 ~~(2)~~ (1) (j), 20.285 (1) (kd), 20.410 (1) (ko) and 20.505 (5) (g) and (kc) to make
7 the payments determined by the building commission under s. 13.488 (1) (m) on the
8 proceeds of obligations specified in those paragraphs.

9 ***b2154/3.7* SECTION 980c.** 20.867 (6) of the statutes is created to read:

10 20.867 (6) CASH BUILDING PROJECTS FUND. (a) *General fund transfer.* From the
11 general fund, to be transferred to the cash building projects fund, a sum sufficient
12 equal to the amount that is required to be transferred to the cash building projects
13 fund under s. 16.518 (4).

14 (q) *Payment of cash in lieu of borrowing.* From the cash building projects fund,
15 a sum sufficient to permit payment of cash in lieu of borrowing for the purposes for
16 which the contracting of public debt is authorized under s. 20.866 (2).

17 ***-1256/5.3* SECTION 981.** 20.875 (1) (a) of the statutes is repealed and
18 recreated to read:

19 20.875 (1) (a) *General fund transfer.* A sum sufficient equal to the amount that
20 is required to be transferred under s. 16.518 (3).

21 ***-1857/5.95* SECTION 983.** 20.903 (2) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

22 20.903 (2) (b) Notwithstanding sub. (1), liabilities may be created and moneys
23 expended from the appropriations under ss. 20.370 (8) (mt), 20.395 (4) (eq), (er) and
24 (es) and 20.505 (1) (im), (ka), (kb), and (kc) ~~and~~ (kd) in an additional amount not
25 exceeding the depreciated value of equipment for operations financed under ss.

1 20.370 (8) (mt), 20.395 (4) (eq), (er) and (es) and 20.505 (1) (im), (ka), (kb), and (kc)
2 ~~and (kd)~~. The secretary of administration may require such statements of assets and
3 liabilities as he or she deems necessary before approving expenditure estimates in
4 excess of the unexpended moneys in the appropriation account.

5 *b2213/2.2* SECTION 983m. 20.9145 of the statutes is created to read:

6 **20.9145 Sale of residual state property.** (1) In this section, “residual state
7 property” means vacant state-owned land, together with any improvements
8 thereon, that are not utilized under any statutory program, or any plan or proposal
9 of a state agency.

10 (2) No later than the end of the 2-year period beginning on the effective date
11 of this subsection ... [revisor inserts date], each state agency that has jurisdiction
12 over residual state property shall solicit bids for the sale of the property.

13 (3) A state agency selling residual state property under sub. (2) shall sell the
14 property to the highest responsible bidder, if any, who offers to pay at least the fair
15 market value of the property.

16 (4) No later than September 1 annually, each state agency that sold a parcel
17 of residual state property in the preceding fiscal year shall file a report with the
18 cochairpersons of the joint committee on finance specifying the location and size of
19 the parcel, the date sold, the estimated fair market value, the sale price and the
20 allocation of the proceeds of the sale.

21 (5) This section does not apply to residual state property that is leased to a
22 person other than a state agency on the effective date of this subsection ... [revisor
23 inserts date], if the lease contains terms that preclude sale of the property during the
24 term of the lease, until the lease expires or the lease is modified, renewed, or
25 extended, whichever first occurs.

1 ***b2213/2.2* SECTION 983mn.** 20.9145 of the statutes, as created by 2001
2 Wisconsin Act (this act), is repealed.

3 ***-2050/1.2* SECTION 984.** 20.916 (8) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

4 20.916 (8) (a) The secretary of employment relations shall recommend to the
5 joint committee on employment relations uniform travel schedule amounts for travel
6 by state officers and employees whose compensation is established under s. 20.923
7 or 230.12. Such amounts shall include maximum permitted amounts for meal and
8 lodging costs, special allowance expenses under sub. (9) (d), and portage tips,
9 except as authorized under s. 16.53 (12) (c). In lieu of the maximum permitted
10 amounts for expenses under sub. (9) (b), (c), and (d), the secretary may recommend
11 to the committee a per diem amount and method of reimbursement for any or all
12 expenses under sub. (9) (b), (c), and (d). ~~The secretary shall also recommend to the~~
13 ~~committee the amount of the allowance for legislative expenses under s. 13.123 (1)~~
14 ~~(a) 1.~~

15 ***-2050/1.3* SECTION 985.** 20.916 (8) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

16 20.916 (8) (b) The approval process for the uniform travel schedule amounts
17 ~~and allowances for legislative expenses~~ under this subsection shall be the same as
18 that provided under s. 230.12 (3) (b). The approved amounts for the uniform travel
19 ~~schedule and legislative expense allowances~~ shall be incorporated into the
20 compensation plan under s. 230.12 (1).

21 ***b2221/3.60* SECTION 988m.** 20.923 (4) (f) 7y. of the statutes is created to read:

22 20.923 (4) (f) 7y. Forestry, department of: secretary.

23 ***-1857/5.96* SECTION 989.** 20.923 (4) (h) 2. of the statutes is created to read:

24 20.923 (4) (h) 2. Electronic government, department of: secretary (chief
25 information officer).

1 ***b0571/1.1* SECTION 989m.** 20.923 (4g) (intro.) of the statutes is amended to
2 read:

3 20.923 (4g) UNIVERSITY OF WISCONSIN SYSTEM SENIOR EXECUTIVE POSITIONS.
4 (intro.) A compensation plan consisting of 9 university senior executive salary
5 groups is established for certain administrative positions at the University of
6 Wisconsin System. The salary ranges and adjustments to the salary ranges for the
7 university senior executive salary groups 1 and 2 shall be contained in the
8 recommendations of the secretary of employment relations under s. 230.12 (3) (e).
9 The salary ranges and adjustments to the salary ranges for university senior
10 executive salary groups 3 to 9 shall be determined by the board of regents of the
11 University of Wisconsin System based on an analysis of salaries paid for similar
12 positions at comparable universities in other states. The board of regents of the
13 ~~University of Wisconsin System~~ shall set the salaries for these positions within the
14 ranges to which the positions are assigned to reflect the hierarchical structure of the
15 system, to recognize merit, to permit orderly salary progression and to recognize
16 competitive factors. The salary of any incumbent in the positions identified in pars.
17 (ae) to (f) may not exceed the maximum of the salary range for the group to which the
18 position is assigned. The positions are assigned as follows:

19 ***1772/1.1* SECTION 993.** 20.923 (G) (dm) of the statutes is repealed.

20 ***b2095/6.7* SECTION 993i.** 20.923 (6) (m) of the statutes is amended to read:

21 20.923 (6) (m) University of Wisconsin System: deans, principals, professors,
22 instructors, research assistants, librarians and other teachers, as defined in s. 40.02
23 (55), and the staff of the environmental education board, and instructional staff
24 employed by the board of regents of the University of Wisconsin System who provide
25 services for a charter school established by contract under s. 118.40 (2r) (cm).

1 ***-1553/2.15* SECTION 994.** 20.924 (1) (h) of the statutes is repealed.

2 ***b0593/6.23* SECTION 994d.** 20.924 (1) (i) of the statutes is created to read:

3 20.924 (1) (i) Shall not acquire or lease or authorize the acquisition or leasing
4 of any building, structure, or facility, or portion thereof, for initial occupancy by the
5 department of corrections for the purpose of confining persons serving a sentence of
6 imprisonment to the Wisconsin state prisons or for the purpose of confining juveniles
7 alleged or found to be delinquent unless one of the following applies:

8 1. If the building, structure, or facility was converted for that purpose, the
9 conversion either was completed before January 1, 2001, or began after the building,
10 structure, or facility was enumerated in the authorized state building program.

11 2. If the building, structure, or facility was not converted for that purpose, the
12 construction of the building, structure, or facility either was completed before
13 January 1, 2001, or began after the building, structure, or facility was enumerated
14 in the authorized state building program.

15 ***b0593/6.23* SECTION 994e.** 20.924 (1) (j) of the statutes is created to read:

16 20.924 (1) (j) Shall not enter into any lease or other contract that provides for
17 the construction of any building, structure, or facility, or portion thereof, for initial
18 occupancy by the state and that contains an option for the state to purchase the
19 building, structure, or facility unless the construction and purchase of the building,
20 structure, or facility is enumerated in the authorized state building program prior
21 to entering into the lease or other contract.

22 ***-1464/2.59* SECTION 995.** 20.924 (4) of the statutes is amended to read:

23 20.924 (4) In addition to the authorized building program for the historical
24 society, the society may expend any funds which are made available from the

1 appropriations under s. 20.245 (1) ~~(ag), (g), (h) and, (m), (2) (a) to (bi), (g), (h) and (m),~~
2 ~~(3) (g), (h), (m) and (n), (4) (g), (h) and (m) and (5) (a), (g), (h) and (m) and (n).~~

3 ***b2127/3.3* SECTION 1013m.** 21.25 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

4 21.25 (1) The department of military affairs ~~shall~~ may administer the Badger
5 Challenge program for disadvantaged youth. ~~The department shall recruit 10% of~~
6 ~~the 1999-2000 class of the program from families who are eligible to receive~~
7 ~~temporary assistance for needy families under 42 USC 601 et seq. The~~ If the
8 department administers the Badger Challenge program under this subsection, it
9 shall recruit 25% of the 2000-01 each class of the program from families who are
10 eligible to receive temporary assistance for needy families under 42 USC 601 et seq.
11 The If the department of military affairs administers the Badger Challenge program
12 under this subsection, it shall promulgate rules for administering the Badger
13 Challenge program.

14 ***-0552/1.1* SECTION 1024.** 21.49 (1) (b) 2. of the statutes is amended to read:

15 21.49 (1) (b) 2. Any accredited institution of higher education, as defined by
16 ~~rule by the higher educational aids board in 20 USC 1002.~~

17 ***b2126/1.1* SECTION 1024bg.** 21.49 (2) (c) of the statutes is created to read:

18 21.49 (2) (c) A member of the U.S. armed forces, including the Wisconsin
19 national guard, for 10 years or more.

20 ***b2126/1.1* SECTION 1024bi.** 21.49 (2) (d) of the statutes is amended to read:

21 21.49 (2) (d) Failing to meet the national guard service eligibility criteria
22 established by the department ~~by rule or absent without leave for more than 9 unit~~
23 training assemblies.

24 ***b2126/1.1* SECTION 1024bk.** 21.49 (2) (f) of the statutes is created to read:

1 21.49 (2) (f) Failing to achieve a minimum grade point average of 2.0 or an
2 average grade of “C” for the semester for which reimbursement is requested.

3 ***b0302/2.1* SECTION 1024c.** 21.49 (3) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

4 21.49 (3) (a) Any eligible guard member upon satisfactory completion of a
5 full-time or part-time course in a qualifying school is eligible for a tuition grant
6 equal to 100% of the actual tuition charged by the school or ~~100%~~ 85% of the
7 maximum resident undergraduate tuition charged by the university of
8 Wisconsin–Madison for a comparable number of credits, whichever amount is less.

9 ***b2126/1.2* SECTION 1024e.** 21.49 (3) (b) 3. of the statutes is amended to read:

10 21.49 (3) (b) 3. Contain the signatures of both the guard member claiming the
11 grant and a representative of the school, certifying that the member has
12 satisfactorily completed the course and has achieved the minimum grade point
13 average or grade, as required under sub. (2) (f).

14 ***b2126/1.3* SECTION 1024i.** 21.49 (3m) of the statutes is amended to read:

15 21.49 (3m) REPAYMENT OF GRANTS. The department ~~may~~ shall require a guard
16 member who has received a grant under this section to repay the amount of the grant
17 to the department if the national guard member, ~~within 12 months of receipt of the~~
18 ~~grant, fails to meet any of~~ on or after the effective date of this subsection [revisor
19 inserts date], is separated from the national guard service eligibility criteria
20 established by the department by rule for misconduct, as defined in the rules and
21 regulations of the national guard, including being absent without leave for more
22 than 9 unit training assemblies. The department may elect to collect the amount
23 owed under this subsection through the tax intercept program under s. 71.93.

24 ***b2126/1.3* SECTION 1024m.** 21.49 (4) (d) of the statutes is created to read:

1 provide information technology development and management services related to
2 those information technology systems. The department may assess executive
3 branch agencies, other than the board of regents of the University of Wisconsin
4 System, for the costs of equipment or systems acquired, operated, maintained, or
5 provided or services provided under this paragraph in accordance with a
6 methodology determined by the chief information officer. The department may also
7 charge any agency for such costs as a component of any services provided by the
8 department to the agency.

9 (g) Assume direct responsibility for the planning and development of any
10 information technology system in the executive branch of state government outside
11 of the University of Wisconsin System that the chief information officer determines
12 to be necessary to effectively develop or manage the system, with or without the
13 consent of any affected executive branch agency. The department may charge any
14 executive branch agency for the department's reasonable costs incurred in carrying
15 out its functions under this paragraph on behalf of that agency.

16 (h) Establish master contracts for the purchase of materials, supplies,
17 equipment, or contractual services relating to information technology or
18 telecommunications for use by agencies, authorities, local governmental units, or
19 entities in the private sector and require any executive branch agency, other than the
20 board of regents of the University of Wisconsin System, to make any purchases of
21 materials, supplies, equipment, or contractual services included under the contract
22 pursuant to the terms of the contract.

23 (i) Accept gifts, grants, and bequests, to be used for the purposes for which
24 made, consistently with applicable laws.

25 *-1857/5.100* SECTION 1030. 22.07 (intro.) of the statutes is created to read:

1 **22.07 Duties of the department.** (intro.) The department shall:

2 ***b0224/3.48* SECTION 1030d.** 22.07 (2) of the statutes is created to read:

3 22.07 (2) Promulgate rules prescribing methodologies for establishing all fees
4 and charges established or assessed by the department or the chief information
5 officer under this chapter.

6 ***b0224/3.48* SECTION 1030k.** 22.07 (7) of the statutes is created to read:

7 22.07 (7) Prescribe and revise as necessary performance measures to ensure
8 financial controls and accountability, optimal personnel utilization, and customer
9 satisfaction for all information technology functions in the executive branch outside
10 of the University of Wisconsin System and annually, no later than March 31, report
11 to the joint committee on information policy and technology and the board
12 concerning the performance measures utilized by the department and the actual
13 performance of the department and the executive branch agencies measured against
14 the performance measures then in effect.

15 ***b0224/3.48* SECTION 1030L.** 22.07 (8) of the statutes is created to read:

16 22.07 (8) Offer the opportunity to local governmental units to voluntarily
17 obtain computer or supercomputer services from the department when those
18 services are provided under s. 22.05 (2) (b) or (c), and to voluntarily participate in any
19 master contract established by the department under s. 22.05 (2) (h) or in the use of
20 any informational system or device provided by the department under 22.09 (3).

21 ***b1595/2.4* SECTION 1030m.** 22.07 (9) of the statutes is created to read:

22 22.07 (9) In consultation with the department of veterans affairs, administer
23 a program to increase outreach to veterans regarding veterans services and benefits,
24 and to provide training to employees of the department of veterans affairs and county
25 veterans service officers. The department of electronic government shall make the

1 program available through a satellite system that is linked to 5 remote locations in
2 this state.

3 *~~1857/5.101~~* SECTION 1031. 22.09 of the statutes is created to read:

4 **22.09 Powers of the chief information officer.** The chief information
5 officer may:

6 (1) Establish and collect assessments and charges for all authorized services
7 provided by the department, subject to applicable agreements under sub. (2).

8 (2) Subject to s. 22.05 (2) (b), enter into and enforce an agreement with any
9 agency, any authority, any unit of the federal government, any local governmental
10 unit, or any entity in the private sector to provide services authorized to be provided
11 by the department to that agency, authority, unit, or entity at a cost specified in the
12 agreement.

13 (3) Develop or operate and maintain any system or device facilitating Internet
14 or telephone access to information about programs of agencies, authorities, local
15 governmental units, or entities in the private sector, or otherwise permitting the
16 transaction of business by agencies, authorities, local governmental units, or entities
17 in the private sector by means of electronic communication. The chief information
18 officer may assess executive branch agencies, other than the board of regents of the
19 University of Wisconsin System, for the costs of systems or devices that are
20 developed, operated, or maintained under this subsection in accordance with a
21 methodology determined by the officer. The chief information officer may also charge
22 any agency, authority, local governmental unit, or entity in the private sector for such
23 costs as a component of any services provided by the department to that agency,
24 authority, local governmental unit, or entity.

1 (5) Review and approve, approve with modifications, or disapprove any
2 proposed contract for the purchase of materials, supplies, equipment, or contractual
3 services relating to information technology or telecommunications by an executive
4 branch agency, other than the board of regents of the University of Wisconsin
5 System.

6 *–1857/5.102* SECTION 1032. 22.13 of the statutes is created to read:

7 **22.13 Strategic plans for executive branch agencies.** (1) As a part of each
8 proposed strategic plan submitted under s. 22.03 (2) (L), the department shall
9 require each executive branch agency to address the business needs of the agency
10 and to identify all proposed information technology development projects that serve
11 those business needs, the priority for undertaking such projects, and the justification
12 for each project, including the anticipated benefits of the project. Each proposed plan
13 shall identify any changes in the functioning of the agency under the plan. In each
14 even-numbered year, the plan shall include identification of any information
15 technology development project that the agency plans to include in its biennial
16 budget request under s. 16.42 (1).

17 (2) Each proposed strategic plan shall separately identify the initiatives that
18 the executive branch agency plans to undertake from resources available to the
19 agency at the time that the plan is submitted and initiatives that the agency proposes
20 to undertake that would require additional resources.

21 (3) Following receipt of a proposed strategic plan from an executive branch
22 agency, the chief information officer shall, before June 1, notify the agency of any
23 concerns that the officer may have regarding the plan and provide the agency with
24 his or her recommendations regarding the proposed plan. The chief information
25 officer may also submit any concerns or recommendations regarding any proposed

1 plan to the board for its consideration. The board shall then consider the proposed
2 plan and provide the chief information officer with its recommendations regarding
3 the plan. The executive branch agency may submit modifications to its proposed
4 plan in response to any recommendations.

5 (4) Before June 15, the chief information officer shall consider any
6 recommendations provided by the board under sub. (3) and shall then approve or
7 disapprove the proposed plan in whole or in part.

8 (5) No executive branch agency, other than the board of regents of the
9 University of Wisconsin System, may implement a new or revised information
10 technology development project authorized under a strategic plan until the
11 implementation is approved by the chief information officer in accordance with
12 procedures prescribed by the officer.

13 (6) The department shall consult with the joint committee on information
14 policy and technology in providing guidance for planning by executive branch
15 agencies.

16 ***-1857/5.103* SECTION 1033.** 22.15 of the statutes is created to read:

17 **22.15 Information technology portfolio management.** With the
18 assistance of executive branch agencies and the advice of the board, the department
19 shall manage the information technology portfolio of state government in accordance
20 with a management structure that includes all of the following:

21 (1) Criteria for selection of information technology assets to be managed.

22 (2) Methods for monitoring and controlling information technology
23 development projects and assets.

1 (3) Methods to evaluate the progress of information technology development
2 projects and the effectiveness of information technology systems, including
3 performance measurements for the information technology portfolio.

4 *–1857/5.104* SECTION 1034. 22.17 of the statutes is created to read:

5 **22.17 Information technology management board.** (1) The board shall
6 provide the chief information officer with its recommendations concerning any
7 elements of the strategic plan of an executive branch agency that are referred to the
8 board under s. 22.13 (3).

9 (2) The board may advise the chief information officer with respect to
10 management of the information technology portfolio of state government under s.
11 22.15.

12 (3) The board may, upon petition of an executive branch agency, review any
13 decision of the chief information officer under this chapter affecting that agency.
14 Upon review, the board may affirm, modify, or set aside the decision. If the board
15 modifies or sets aside the decision of the chief information officer, the decision of the
16 board stands as the decision of the chief information officer and the decision is not
17 subject to further review or appeal.

18 (4) The board may monitor progress in attaining goals for information
19 technology and telecommunications development set by the chief information officer
20 or executive branch agencies, other than the board of regents of the University of
21 Wisconsin System, and may make recommendations to the officer or agencies
22 concerning appropriate means of attaining those goals.

23 *b2221/3.61* SECTION 1034fb. 23.09 (2) (d) 1. of the statutes is repealed.

24 *b2221/3.61* SECTION 1034fd. 23.09 (2) (d) 5. of the statutes is repealed.

25 *b2221/3.61* SECTION 1034fg. 23.09 (2p) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

1 23.09 (2p) (a) The department of natural resources shall determine the value
2 of land donated to the ~~department~~ state that is within the project boundaries of a
3 state park, a southern state forest, or a state recreation area. The department of
4 forestry shall determine the value of land donated to the state that is within the
5 project boundaries of other state forests. If the donation involves the transfer of the
6 title in fee simple absolute or other arrangement for the transfer of all interest in the
7 land to the state, the valuation shall be based on the fair market value of the land
8 before the transfer. If the donation is a dedication transferring a partial interest in
9 land to the state, the valuation shall be based on the extent to which the fair market
10 value of the land is diminished by that transfer and the associated articles of
11 dedication. If the donation involves a sale of land ~~to the department~~ at less than the
12 fair market value, the valuation of the donation shall be based on the difference
13 between the purchase price and the fair market value.

14 ***b2221/3.61* SECTION 1034fh.** 23.09 (2p) (b) of the statutes is amended to
15 read:

16 23.09 (2p) (b) Except as provided in par. (c), an amount of money equal to the
17 value of the donation under par. (a) shall be released from the appropriation under
18 s. 20.866 (2) (ta) or (tz) or both to be used for land acquisition activities for the same
19 project for which any donation was made on or after August 9, 1989. ~~The~~ From the
20 moneys made available to the department under the agreement under s. 23.0917
21 (4r), the department shall determine how the moneys being released are to be
22 allocated from these appropriations. This paragraph does not apply to transfers of
23 land from agencies other than the department of forestry.

24 ***b2221/3.61* SECTION 1034fj.** 23.09 (3) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

1 23.09 (3) (a) The department of natural resources shall cooperate with the
2 ~~several state department of forestry and other~~ departments and officials in the
3 conduct of matters in which the interests of the respective departments or officials
4 overlap. The cooperating agencies may provide by agreement for the manner of
5 sharing expenses and responsibilities under this paragraph.

6 ***b2221/3.61* SECTION 1034fk.** 23.09 (11) (a) of the statutes is renumbered
7 23.09 (11) (ar).

8 ***b2221/3.61* SECTION 1034fL.** 23.09 (11) (ag) of the statutes is created to read:
9 23.09 (11) (ag) In this subsection, “department” means the department of
10 forestry.

11 ***b2221/3.61* SECTION 1034fn.** 23.09 (17m) (a) of the statutes is renumbered
12 23.09 (17m) (am) and amended to read:

13 23.09 (17m) (am) The county board of any county, which by resolution indicates
14 its desire to improve the natural environment for wildlife on county lands entered
15 under s. 28.11, may make application to the department for the allocation of funds
16 appropriated for such purposes by s. ~~20.370 (5) (as)~~ 20.375 (2) (sL).

17 ***b2221/3.61* SECTION 1034fp.** 23.09 (17m) (ac) of the statutes is created to
18 read:

19 23.09 (17m) (ac) In this subsection, “department” means the department of
20 forestry.

21 ***b2221/3.61* SECTION 1034fq.** 23.09 (17m) (b) of the statutes is amended to
22 read:

23 23.09 (17m) (b) The annual allocation for each county shall not exceed 10 cents
24 for each acre entered under s. 28.11, but any funds remaining from the appropriation
25 made by s. ~~20.370 (5) (as)~~ 20.375 (2) (sL) and unallocated to the counties on March

1 31 of each year may be allotted to any county in an amount not to exceed an additional
2 10 cents per acre under the procedure established in this subsection. These aids shall
3 be used to undertake wildlife management activities provided in the comprehensive
4 county forest land use plan and included in the annual work plan and budget.

5 *b2221/3.61* SECTION 1034fr. 23.09 (18) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

6 23.09 (18) (a) In each fiscal year, the department of forestry shall make
7 payments to each county that has more than 40,000 acres within its boundaries that
8 are entered on the tax roll under s. 77.04 (1) or 77.84 (1) on July 1 of that fiscal year.

9 *b2221/3.61* SECTION 1034fs. 23.09 (18) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

10 23.09 (18) (b) The amount of the payment made in a fiscal year to an eligible
11 county shall equal the county's proportionate share of the moneys appropriated
12 under s. ~~20.370 (5) (br)~~ 20.375 (2) (tm) for the fiscal year. An eligible county's
13 proportionate share shall equal the number of acres within its boundaries that are
14 entered on the tax roll under s. 77.04 (1) or 77.84 (1) on July 1 of the fiscal year divided
15 by the total number of acres that are entered on the tax roll under s. 77.04 (1) or 77.84
16 (1) on that same date and that are within the boundaries of counties that are eligible
17 for payments under this section, multiplied by the amount appropriated under s.
18 ~~20.370 (5) (br)~~ 20.375 (2) (tm) for the fiscal year.

19 *b2221/3.61* SECTION 1034ft. 23.09 (18) (c) of the statutes is amended to read:

20 23.09 (18) (c) The department of forestry shall calculate and issue the payment
21 for each eligible county by October 1 following each fiscal year.

22 *b2221/3.61* SECTION 1034fu. 23.09 (20) (ar) of the statutes is created to read:

23 23.09 (20) (ar) For each fiscal year, the department of natural resources and
24 the department of forestry shall enter into an agreement to determine which projects
25 are eligible for assistance under this subsection and to authorize the expenditures

1 for those projects. The secretary of administration shall resolve any disputes
2 between the departments concerning the agreement entered into under this
3 paragraph.

4 *b2221/3.61* SECTION 1034fv. 23.09 (21m) of the statutes is amended to read:

5 23.09 (21m) ENVIRONMENTAL CLEANUP. The department of natural resources
6 may engage in environmental clean-up activities on the lands under its the
7 ownership, management, supervision, or control of the department of natural
8 resources or the department of forestry.

9 *b2221/3.61* SECTION 1034fw. 23.09 (26) (a) of the statutes is amended to
10 read:

11 23.09 (26) (a) The procedures in sub. (11) ~~(a)~~ (ar), (d), (e) and (f) shall apply to
12 this subsection except that the department shall consult with the snowmobile
13 recreational council before adopting snowmobile trail construction standards, the
14 restriction in sub. (11) ~~(a)~~ (ar) as to county lands is not applicable, the restriction in
15 sub. (11) (d) as to encumbrance of funds is not applicable and the restriction in sub.
16 (11) (e) as to requests for state aids exceeding available funds is not applicable.

17 *b2221/3.61* SECTION 1034fx. 23.09 (26) (am) 2. of the statutes is amended
18 to read:

19 23.09 (26) (am) 2. Enter into agreements with the department of natural
20 resources or the department of forestry to use for snowmobile trails, facilities, or
21 areas lands owned or leased by the department of natural resources or the
22 department of forestry. No lands of the department of natural resources or the
23 department of forestry that are to be used for snowmobiling purposes within the
24 meaning of this subsection may be obtained through condemnation.

1 ***b2221/3.61* SECTION 1034fyr.** 23.0917 (1) (c) of the statutes is amended to
2 read:

3 23.0917 (1) (c) “Department land” means an area of land that is owned by the
4 state, that is under the jurisdiction of the department and that is used for one of the
5 purposes specified in s. 23.09 (2) (d) or that is under the jurisdiction of the
6 department of forestry and is in state forest lands.

7 ***b0593/6.24* SECTION 1034h.** 23.0917 (3) (a) of the statutes is amended to
8 read:

9 23.0917 (3) (a) Beginning with fiscal year 2000–01 and ending with fiscal year
10 2009–10, the department may obligate moneys under the subprogram for land
11 acquisition to acquire land for the purposes specified in s. 23.09 (2) (d) and grants for
12 these purposes under s. 23.096, except as provided under ss. 23.197 (2m), (3m) (b),
13 (7), (7m), and (8) and 23.198 (1) (a).

14 ***b2221/3.62* SECTION 1034hm.** 23.0917 (3) (a) of the statutes, as affected by
15 2001 Wisconsin Act (this act), is amended to read:

16 23.0917 (3) (a) Beginning with fiscal year 2000–01 and ending with fiscal year
17 2009–10, the department may obligate moneys under the subprogram for land
18 acquisition to acquire land for the purposes specified in s. 23.09 (2) (d) and for the
19 state forests, and for grants for these purposes under s. 23.096, except as provided
20 under ss. 23.197 (2m), (3m) (b), (7), (7m), and (8) and 23.198 (1) (a).

21 ***b0648/1.1* SECTION 1034k.** 23.0917 (3) (bm) of the statutes is created to read:

22 23.0917 (3) (bm) During the period beginning with fiscal year 2001–02 and
23 ending with fiscal year 2009–10, in obligating money under the subprogram for land
24 acquisition, the department shall set aside not less than a total of \$12,000,000 that

1 may be obligated only to provide matching funds for grants awarded to the
2 department for the purchase of land or easements under 16 USC 2103c.

3 *b0869/3.2* SECTION 1034L. 23.0917 (3) (dm) 1m. of the statutes is created to
4 read:

5 23.0917 (3) (dm) 1m. For fiscal year 2001–02, \$34,500,000.

6 *b0869/3.2* SECTION 1034m. 23.0917 (3) (dm) 2. of the statutes is amended to
7 read:

8 23.0917 (3) (dm) 2. For each fiscal year beginning with ~~2001–02~~ 2002–03 and
9 ending with fiscal year 2009–10, ~~\$34,500,000~~ \$45,000,000.

10 *b0593/6.24* SECTION 1034p. 23.0917 (4) (a) of the statutes is amended to
11 read:

12 23.0917 (4) (a) Beginning with fiscal year 2000–01 and ending with fiscal year
13 2009–10, the department may obligate moneys under the subprogram for property
14 development and local assistance. Moneys obligated under this subprogram may be
15 only used for nature–based outdoor recreation, except as provided under par. (cm).

16 *b0593/6.24* SECTION 1034pm. 23.0917 (4) (cm) of the statutes is created to
17 read:

18 23.0917 (4) (cm) Notwithstanding the purposes for which the department is
19 authorized to obligate moneys under pars. (a), (b), and (c), the department may
20 obligate moneys under the subprogram for property development and local
21 assistance for any of the following purposes:

22 1. Construction of the Wisconsin agricultural stewardship initiative facility
23 under s. 23.197 (7m).

24 1m. Construction of a visitor center and administration building at the
25 Kickapoo valley reserve under s. 23.197 (2m).

1 2. Projects approved by the state fair park board under s. 23.197 (8).

2 3. Reconstruction of the chalet at Rib Mountain State Park under s. 23.197 (3m)

3 (b).

4 5. Development of a conservation law enforcement museum under s. 23.197
5 (8m).

6 6. Restoration of an area on the exposed bed of the former flowage on the Prairie
7 River.

8 ***b0869/3.3* SECTION 1034q.** 23.0917 (4) (d) 1. of the statutes is amended to
9 read:

10 23.0917 (4) (d) 1. The department may obligate not more than \$11,500,000 in
11 each fiscal year 2000–01 and not more than \$11,500,000 in fiscal year 2001–02 under
12 the subprogram except as provided in sub. (5). For each fiscal year beginning with
13 2002–03 and ending with fiscal year 2009–10, the department may obligate not more
14 than \$15,000,000 under the subprogram except as provided in sub. (5).

15 ***b2221/3.63* SECTION 1034r.** 23.0917 (4r) of the statutes is created to read:

16 23.0917 (4r) AGREEMENT BETWEEN DEPARTMENTS. (a) For each fiscal year, the
17 department of natural resources and the department of forestry shall enter into an
18 agreement establishing all of the following:

19 1. The amount of funding from the appropriation under s. 20.866 (2) (ta) that
20 will be obligated for the land acquisition subprogram under sub. (3) and the amount
21 of funding from the appropriation under s. 20.866 (2) (ta) that will be obligated for
22 the property development and local assistance subprogram under sub. (4).

23 2. For the land acquisition subprogram, the amount of funding from the
24 appropriation under s. 20.866 (2) (ta) that will be obligated for the acquisition of state
25 forest land, for each of the purposes specified in s. 23.09 (2) (d), and for the grants for

1 each of these purposes under s. 23.096, other than for the projects or activities
2 specified under s. 23.197.

3 3. For the property development and local assistance subprogram, the amount
4 of funding from the appropriation under s. 20.866 (2) (ta) that will be obligated for
5 each of the purposes listed under sub. (4) (b) and (c), other than for the projects or
6 activities specified under ss. 23.197 and 23.198.

7 4. The priorities under sub. (3) (c).

8 (b) The secretary of administration shall resolve any disputes between the
9 departments concerning the agreement under par. (a).

10 *b0636/1.1* SECTION 1035g. 23.0917 (7) (e) of the statutes is amended to read:

11 23.0917 (7) (e) For any land for which moneys are proposed to be obligated from
12 the appropriation under s. 20.866 (2) (ta) in order to provide a grant or state aid to
13 a governmental unit under s. 23.09 (19), (20), or (20m) or 30.277 or to a nonprofit
14 conservation organization under s. 23.096, and if the department estimates that the
15 fair market value of the land exceeds \$200,000, the governmental unit or nonprofit
16 conservation organization shall submit to the department ~~two appraisals if the~~
17 ~~department estimates that the fair market value of the land exceeds \$200,000 at~~
18 least one appraisal and the department shall obtain its own independent appraisal.

19 *b0642/1.1* SECTION 1035m. 23.0917 (7) (f) of the statutes is created to read:

20 23.0917 (7) (f) 1. In this paragraph, “taxation district” has the meaning given
21 in s. 70.114 (1) (e).

22 2. For any acquisition of any land that is funded with moneys obligated from
23 the appropriation under s. 20.866 (2) (ta), the department, within 30 days after the
24 moneys are obligated, shall submit to the clerk and the assessor of each taxation
25 district in which the land is located a copy of every appraisal in the department’s

1 possession that was prepared in order to determine the fair market value of the land
2 involved. An assessor who receives a copy of an appraisal under this subdivision
3 shall consider the appraisal in valuing the land as provided under s. 70.32 (1).

4 ***-1411/2.2* SECTION 1036.** 23.0917 (8) (b) of the statutes is created to read:

5 23.0917 (8) (b) The department may not obligate moneys from the
6 appropriation under s. 20.866 (2) (ta) for the acquisition or development of land by
7 a county or other local governmental unit or political subdivision if the county, local
8 governmental unit, or political subdivision acquires the land involved by
9 condemnation.

10 ***b2221/3.64* SECTION 1036b.** 23.0919 of the statutes is created to read:

11 **23.0919 Forestry land endowment fund. (1)** In this section, “land”
12 includes any buildings, facilities, or other structures located on the land.

13 **(2)** Unless the secretary of forestry determines otherwise in a specific case, only
14 the income from the gifts, grants, or bequests in the forestry land endowment fund
15 is available for expenditure. The secretary of forestry may authorize expenditures
16 only for preserving, developing, managing, or maintaining land that is under the
17 jurisdiction of the department of forestry and that is used for conservation purposes.
18 In this subsection, unless otherwise provided in a gift, grant, or bequest, principal
19 and income are determined as provided under s. 701.20 (3).

20 ***b2221/3.64* SECTION 1036bb.** 23.092 (5) (a) of the statutes is amended to
21 read:

22 23.092 (5) (a) The department shall determine the value of land or an easement
23 donated to the department that is within a habitat area and is dedicated for purposes
24 of habitat protection, enhancement, or restoration. For an easement, the valuation
25 shall be based on the extent to which the fair market value of the land is diminished

1 by the transfer. Except as provided in par. (b), an amount of money equal to the value
2 of the donation shall be released from the appropriation under s. 20.866 (2) (ta) or
3 (tz) or both to be used for habitat protection, enhancement, or restoration activities
4 for the same habitat area in which any donation was made on or after
5 August 9, 1989. The department shall determine how the moneys being released are
6 to be allocated from these appropriations. The amounts released from the
7 appropriation under s. 20.866 (2) (ta) shall be subject to the agreement under s.
8 23.0917 (4r).

9 *b2221/3.64* SECTION 1036bd. 23.094 (4) (a) of the statutes is amended to
10 read:

11 23.094 (4) (a) The department shall determine the value of land or an easement
12 donated to the department for purposes of this section and for stream bank
13 protection under s. 23.096. For an easement, the valuation shall be based on the
14 extent to which the fair market value of the land is diminished by the transfer.
15 Except as provided in par. (b), an amount of money equal to the value of the donation
16 shall be released from the appropriation under s. 20.866 (2) (ta) or (tz) or both to be
17 used to acquire easements and land under this section and s. 23.096 for the same
18 stream for which any donation was made on or after August 9, 1989. The
19 department shall determine how the moneys being released are to be allocated from
20 these appropriations. The amounts released from the appropriation under s. 20.866
21 (2) (ta) shall be subject to the agreement under s. 23.0917 (4r).

22 *b2221/3.64* SECTION 1036be. 23.095 (1m) (title) of the statutes is amended
23 to read:

24 23.095 (1m) (title) PROHIBITION ON ~~DEPARTMENT LAND~~ CERTAIN STATE LANDS.

1 ***b2221/3.64* SECTION 1036bf.** 23.095 (1m) (a) of the statutes is amended to
2 read:

3 23.095 (1m) (a) No person may damage or attempt to damage any natural
4 resource or any archaeological feature located on state-owned lands that are under
5 the supervision, management, and control of the department ~~except as of natural~~
6 resources or the department of forestry unless the person is authorized to do so by
7 the department of natural resources or the department of forestry.

8 ***b2221/3.64* SECTION 1036bg.** 23.0955 (2) (am) of the statutes is amended to
9 read:

10 23.0955 (2) (am) ~~Beginning in fiscal year 1997–98, the~~ The department may
11 ~~provide an annual award one grant of \$150,000 in each fiscal year~~ to a nonstock,
12 nonprofit corporation that meets all of the qualifications under par. (a).

13 ***b2221/3.64* SECTION 1036bm.** 23.0955 (2) (c) of the statutes is created to
14 read:

15 23.0955 (2) (c) If the department awards a grant under this subsection, the
16 department shall pay part of the grant in an amount equal to \$112,500 from the
17 appropriation under s. 20.370 (5) (aw) to the corporation receiving the grant, and the
18 department of forestry shall pay part of the grant in an amount equal to \$37,500 from
19 the appropriation under s. 20.375 (2) (rq) to the corporation receiving the grant.

20 ***b2221/3.64* SECTION 1036br.** 23.0956 (1) (intro.) of the statutes is amended
21 to read:

22 23.0956 (1) (intro.) ~~From the appropriation under s. 20.370 (5) (aw), the~~ The
23 department shall provide award one grant of \$85,000 in each fiscal year, ~~beginning~~
24 ~~with fiscal year 2000–01,~~ to a nonstock, nonprofit corporation that is described under

1 section 501 (c) (3) or (4) of the Internal Revenue Code and organized in this state if
2 the corporation meets all of the following requirements:

3 ***b2221/3.64* SECTION 1036bv.** 23.0956 (3) of the statutes is created to read:

4 23.0956 (3) The department shall pay part of the grant in an amount equal to
5 \$42,500 from the appropriation under s. 20.370 (5) (aw) to the corporation receiving
6 the grant, and the department of forestry shall pay part of the grant in an amount
7 equal to \$42,500 from the appropriation under s. 20.375 (2) (rq) to the corporation
8 receiving the grant.

9 ***b0914/1.2* SECTION 1036bx.** 23.0957 (title) of the statutes is amended to
10 read:

11 **23.0957 (title) Annual grants to a nonstock, nonprofit corporation;**
12 **urban land conservation projects.**

13 ***b0914/1.2* SECTION 1036c.** 23.0957 (1) (title) of the statutes is created to
14 read:

15 23.0957 (1) (title) DEFINITIONS.

16 ***b0914/1.2* SECTION 1036d.** 23.0957 (1) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

17 23.0957 (1) (b) “Interested group” means a community group, nonprofit
18 organization, or local governmental unit that is interested in environmental quality
19 issues and in acquiring ~~urban, developing, maintaining, or restoring~~ land for one or
20 more urban forestry protection, ~~water resource management, conservation,~~
21 ~~recreation or other urban open space~~ conservation purposes.

22 ***b0914/1.2* SECTION 1036e.** 23.0957 (1) (c) of the statutes is created to read:

23 23.0957 (1) (c) “Urban conservation purpose” means an urban, open space
24 conservation or restoration area; urban forest protection or enhancement; water
25 resource management in urban areas; resource management strategies for urban

1 areas; conservation activities in an urban area; or recreation activities in an urban
2 area.

3 *b0914/1.2* SECTION 1036em. 23.0957 (2) (intro.) of the statutes is amended
4 to read:

5 23.0957 (2) RECIPIENT REQUIREMENTS. (intro.) The department shall provide
6 one grant of ~~\$75,000~~ \$150,000 in each fiscal year, ~~beginning with fiscal year~~
7 ~~1999–2000~~ to be used for one or more urban conservation purposes, to a nonstock,
8 nonprofit corporation that meets all of the following requirements:

9 *b0914/1.2* SECTION 1036f. 23.0957 (2) (intro.) of the statutes, as affected by
10 2001 Wisconsin Act (this act), is amended to read:

11 23.0957 (2) RECIPIENT REQUIREMENTS. (intro.) The department of natural
12 resources and beginning with fiscal year 2002–03, the department of forestry shall
13 provide one grant of \$150,000 in each fiscal year, to be used for one or more urban
14 conservation purposes, to a nonstock, nonprofit corporation that meets all of the
15 following requirements:

16 *b0914/1.2* SECTION 1036g. 23.0957 (2) (c) 2. of the statutes is repealed.

17 *b0914/1.2* SECTION 1036h. 23.0957 (2) (c) 3. of the statutes is repealed.

18 *b0914/1.2* SECTION 1036j. 23.0957 (2) (c) 5. of the statutes is repealed.

19 *b0914/1.2* SECTION 1036k. 23.0957 (2) (c) 7. of the statutes is repealed.

20 *b0914/1.2* SECTION 1036m. 23.0957 (2) (d) of the statutes is amended to read:

21 23.0957 (2) (d) The corporation contributes ~~\$25,000~~ \$50,000 in funds annually
22 to be used with the grant that it receives under this subsection.

23 *b0914/1.2* SECTION 1036n. 23.0957 (2) (e) of the statutes is created to read:

1 23.0957 (2) (e) The corporation contributes substantial support to a network
2 that encourages activities that further one or more urban conservation purposes in
3 various urban communities in this state.

4 ***b0914/1.2* SECTION 1036p.** 23.0957 (2r) of the statutes is created to read:

5 23.0957 (2r) AUTHORIZED ACTIVITIES. A corporation receiving a grant under sub.
6 (2) may use proceeds from the grant for projects that are for one or more urban
7 conservation purposes and that are undertaken by the corporation. For urban, open
8 space projects, conservation projects in urban areas, or recreation projects in urban
9 areas undertaken by the corporation, the corporation may use the proceeds for the
10 acquisition of land for these projects.

11 ***b0914/1.2* SECTION 1036q.** 23.0957 (3) (intro.) of the statutes is amended to
12 read:

13 23.0957 (3) REQUIRED ACTIVITIES. (intro.) A corporation receiving a grant under
14 sub. (2) may use the grant for urban forest protection, water resource enhancement
15 ~~or other urban open space objectives and shall do~~ use proceeds from the grant to do
16 all of the following ~~with the grant.~~

17 ***b0914/1.2* SECTION 1036r.** 23.0957 (3) (a) of the statutes is renumbered
18 23.0957 (3) (a) (intro.) and amended to read:

19 23.0957 (3) (a) (intro.) Provide to interested groups technical assistance,
20 especially ~~in the areas of urban open space real estate transactions, reclaiming and~~
21 ~~restoring the natural values of urban parks, urban forests and open space areas,~~
22 ~~designing and constructing amenities in open space areas, on all of the following~~
23 topics:

24 1. Methods of cultivating citizen participation in acquiring, developing, and
25 maintaining urban, open space areas and securing.

1 2. Methods of securing public financing for urban, open space areas.

2 *b0914/1.2* SECTION 1036s. 23.0957 (3) (a) 3. of the statutes is created to read:

3 23.0957 (3) (a) 3. Comprehensive management methods for urban forests.

4 *b0914/1.2* SECTION 1036t. 23.0957 (3) (a) 4. of the statutes is created to read:

5 23.0957 (3) (a) 4. The use of resource management strategies to improve water
6 and air quality and to revitalize urban communities.

7 *b0914/1.2* SECTION 1036u. 23.0957 (3) (a) 5. of the statutes is created to read:

8 23.0957 (3) (a) 5. Methods for reducing the presence of toxic substances in
9 residential neighborhoods in urban areas.

10 *b0914/1.2* SECTION 1036v. 23.0957 (3) (a) 6. of the statutes is created to read:

11 23.0957 (3) (a) 6. Methods for promoting environmental education and
12 environmental stewardship in urban communities.

13 *b0914/1.2* SECTION 1036w. 23.0957 (3) (c) of the statutes is amended to read:

14 23.0957 (3) (c) Assist ~~community interested~~ groups, ~~nonprofit organizations~~
15 and local governmental units in acquiring urban property for open space, developing,
16 maintaining, or restoring land for one or more urban conservation purposes and in
17 ~~restoring urban property acquired for conservation, recreation and other open space~~
18 ~~purposes.~~

19 *b0914/1.2* SECTION 1036wm. 23.0957 (3) (d) of the statutes is amended to
20 read:

21 23.0957 (3) (d) For each fiscal year, prepare a report detailing the activities for
22 which a grant under sub. (2) is expended. Copies of the report shall be submitted to
23 the department and to the appropriate standing committees of the legislature, as
24 determined by the speaker of the assembly ~~or~~ and the president of the senate.

1 ***b0914/1.2* SECTION 1036x.** 23.0957 (3) (d) of the statutes, as affected by 2001
2 Wisconsin Act (this act), is amended to read:

3 23.0957 (3) (d) For each fiscal year, prepare a report detailing the activities for
4 which a grant under sub. (2) is expended. Copies Beginning with the report for fiscal
5 year 2002–03, copies of the report shall be submitted to the department of forestry
6 and to the appropriate standing committees of the legislature, as determined by the
7 speaker of the assembly and the president of the senate.

8 ***b0914/1.2* SECTION 1036y.** 23.0957 (4) of the statutes is repealed.

9 ***b2221/3.64* SECTION 1036yi.** 23.096 (2) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

10 23.096 (2) (a) The department may award grants from the appropriation under
11 s. 20.866 (2) (ta) or (tz) to nonprofit conservation organizations to acquire property
12 for all of the purposes described in ss. 23.09 (2) (d) ~~1. to 7.~~ 2., 3., 4., 6., 9., 11., 12. and
13 15., (19), (20), and (20m), 23.092, 23.094, 23.17, 23.175, 23.27, 23.29, 23.293, 30.24,
14 and 30.277 and for state forests, and for forest nurseries and experimental stations.

15 ***b2221/3.64* SECTION 1036yj.** 23.096 (2) (am) of the statutes is created to
16 read:

17 23.096 (2) (am) In determining which grants will be awarded under this
18 section, the department of forestry and the department of natural resources shall
19 both approve each grant. Any dispute regarding which nonprofit conservation
20 organization will receive a grant under this section shall be resolved by the secretary
21 of administration. The grants awarded under this section from the appropriation
22 under s. 20.866 (2) (ta) shall be subject to the agreement under s. 23.0917 (4r).

23 ***b2221/3.64* SECTION 1036yk.** 23.096 (3) (intro.) of the statutes is amended
24 to read:

1 23.096 (3) (intro.) In Except as provided in sub. (3m), in order to receive a grant
2 under this section, the nonprofit conservation organization shall enter into a
3 contract with the department that contains all of the following provisions:

4 ***b2221/3.64* SECTION 1036yL.** 23.096 (3m) of the statutes is created to read:

5 23.096 (3m) In order to receive a grant under this section for state forests, other
6 than southern state forests, or for forest nurseries or experimental stations, the
7 nonprofit conservation organization shall enter into a contract with the department
8 of forestry that contains all of the provisions under sub. (3).

9 ***b2221/3.64* SECTION 1036ym.** 23.096 (4) (a) 1. of the statutes is amended to
10 read:

11 23.096 (4) (a) 1. The department that entered into the contract under sub. (3)
12 or (3m) approves the subsequent sale or transfer.

13 ***b2221/3.64* SECTION 1036yn.** 23.096 (4) (a) 2. of the statutes is amended to
14 read:

15 23.096 (4) (a) 2. The party to whom the property is sold or transferred enters
16 into a new contract with the department specified in subd. 1. that contains the
17 provisions under sub. (3).

18 ***b2221/3.64* SECTION 1036yp.** 23.096 (4) (b) of the statutes is amended to
19 read:

20 23.096 (4) (b) The nonprofit conservation organization may subsequently sell
21 or transfer the acquired property to satisfy a debt or other obligation if the
22 department that enters into the contract under sub. (3) or (3m) approves the sale or
23 transfer.

24 ***b1073/1.8* SECTION 1036yr.** 23.0962 of the statutes is repealed.

25 ***b2116/1.10* SECTION 1036yt.** 23.0963 of the statutes is created to read:

1 **23.0963 Racine museum.** (1) From the appropriation under s. 20.370 (5) (cq),
2 beginning with fiscal year 2001–02 and ending with 2004–05, the department,
3 subject to sub (2), shall provide \$500,000 in funding in each fiscal year to Racine
4 County for the construction of the Discovery Place museum as part of the Heritage
5 museum in the city of Racine.

6 (2) The department may not provide the funding for construction under sub.
7 (1) unless the department of administration has reviewed and approved the
8 applicable plans for the construction.

9 *–0341/1.1* **SECTION 1037.** 23.097 (1) of the statutes is renumbered 23.097 (1)
10 (b) and amended to read:

11 23.097 (1) (b) The department shall award grants to counties, cities and,
12 villages, towns, and nonprofit organizations for up to 50% of the cost of tree
13 management plans, tree inventories, brush residue projects, the development of tree
14 management ordinances, tree disease evaluations, public education concerning
15 trees in urban areas and other tree projects.

16 *b2221/3.65* **SECTION 1037m.** 23.097 (1) of the statutes, as affected by 2001
17 Wisconsin Act (this act), is renumbered 23.097 (1m).

18 *–0341/1.2* **SECTION 1038.** 23.097 (1) (a) of the statutes is created to read:

19 23.097 (1) (a) In this subsection, a “nonprofit organization” means an
20 organization that is described in section 501 (c) (3) of the Internal Revenue Code and
21 that is exempt from federal income tax under section 501 (a) of the Internal Revenue
22 Code.

23 *b2221/3.66* **SECTION 1038bb.** 23.097 (1b) of the statutes is created to read:

24 23.097 (1b) In this section, “department” means the department of forestry.

1 ***b2221/3.66* SECTION 1038bd.** 23.098 (1) (ag) of the statutes is amended to
2 read:

3 23.098 (1) (ag) “Department property” means an area of real property that is
4 owned by the state, that is under the jurisdiction of the department of natural
5 resources, and that is used for one of the purposes specified in s. 23.09 (2) (d) or that
6 is in a state forest.

7 ***b2221/3.66* SECTION 1038be.** 23.098 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

8 23.098 (2) The department of natural resources and the department of forestry
9 shall establish jointly administer a program to make grants from the appropriations
10 under s. 20.866 (2) (ta) and (tz) to friends groups and nonprofit conservation
11 organizations for projects for property development activities on department
12 properties. ~~The department may not encumber~~ Not more than \$250,000 may be
13 encumbered in each fiscal year for ~~these grants under this section.~~

14 ***b2221/3.66* SECTION 1038bg.** 23.098 (2m) of the statutes is created to read:

15 23.098 (2m) In determining which grants will be awarded under this section,
16 the department of forestry and the department of natural resources shall both
17 approve each grant. Any dispute regarding which friends groups will receive a grant
18 under this section shall be resolved by the secretary of administration.

19 ***b2221/3.66* SECTION 1038bi.** 23.098 (3) of the statutes is amended to read:

20 23.098 (3) The department of natural resources and the department of forestry
21 shall jointly promulgate rules to establish criteria to be used in determining which
22 property development activities are eligible for ~~these grants under this section.~~ The
23 rules promulgated by the department of natural resources under this subsection that
24 are in effect on the effective date of this subsection ... [revisor inserts date], shall
25 remain in effect until rules are jointly promulgated by the 2 departments.

1 ***b2221/3.66* SECTION 1038bk.** 23.098 (4) (a) of the statutes is amended to
2 read:

3 23.098 (4) (a) The department of natural resources and the department of
4 forestry shall periodically prepare a list of projects on department properties that are
5 eligible for grants under this section and shall include in the list the estimated cost
6 of each project.

7 ***b2221/3.66* SECTION 1038bm.** 23.098 (4) (am) of the statutes is amended to
8 read:

9 23.098 (4) (am) In awarding grants under this section for eligible projects, the
10 department of natural resources and the department of forestry shall jointly
11 establish a system under which the grants are offered to eligible friends groups
12 before being offered to eligible nonprofit conservation organizations.

13 ***b2221/3.66* SECTION 1038bp.** 23.098 (4) (b) of the statutes is amended to
14 read:

15 23.098 (4) (b) ~~The department may not encumber~~ Not more than \$20,000 may
16 be encumbered for grants under this section for a department property in each fiscal
17 year.

18 ***b2066/2.1* SECTION 1038bq.** 23.10 (1m) of the statutes is created to read:

19 23.10 (1m) The department shall designate a conservation warden as the chief
20 warden. The chief warden shall have the duty to direct, supervise, and control
21 conservation wardens in the performance of their duties under sub. (1) and s. 29.921.

22 ***b2221/3.66* SECTION 1038br.** 23.11 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

23 23.11 (1) In addition to the powers and duties heretofore conferred and imposed
24 upon said the department by this chapter it shall have and take the general care,
25 protection, and supervision of all state parks, of all state fish hatcheries and lands

1 used therewith, of all southern state forests, and of all lands owned by the state or
2 in which it has any interests, except lands the care and supervision of which are
3 vested in some other officer, body, or board; and ~~said~~ the department is granted such
4 further powers as may be necessary or convenient to enable it to exercise the
5 functions and perform the duties required of it by this chapter and by other
6 provisions of law. But it may not perform any act upon state lands held for sale that
7 will diminish their salable value.

8 *b0996/1.1* SECTION 1038d. 23.113 of the statutes is created to read:

9 **23.113 Designation of chief state forester.** The secretary shall designate
10 the administrator of the division of forestry in the department as the chief state
11 forester. The chief state forester shall be a professional forester as recognized by the
12 society of American foresters.

13 *b0996/1.1* SECTION 1038dc. 23.113 of the statutes, as created by 2001
14 Wisconsin Act (this act), is amended to read:

15 **23.113 Designation of chief state forester.** The secretary of forestry shall
16 designate the administrator of the division of forestry in the department of forestry
17 as the chief state forester. The chief state forester shall be a professional forester as
18 recognized by the society of American foresters.

19 *b1675/1.1* SECTION 1038dg. 23.118 of the statutes is created to read:

20 **23.118 Signs required.** If the department acquires an easement that provides
21 the public with access to a body of water for the purpose of fishing, the department
22 shall place a sign on the property where the easement is located that informs the
23 public that the easement allows the public access to the body of water for the purpose
24 of fishing.

25 *b0632/1.2* SECTION 1038di. 23.125 of the statutes is created to read:

1 **23.125 Natural resources board member conflicts of interest.** (1) If a
2 member of the natural resources board is the holder of a permit or license issued by
3 the department under chs. 280 to 299, that member may not engage in a discussion
4 at a board meeting or participate in a board decision on any matter that substantially
5 relates to the permit or license.

6 (2) If a member of the natural resources board receives, or has during the
7 previous 2 years received, a significant portion of his or her income directly or
8 indirectly from a holder of or applicant for a permit or license issued by the
9 department under chs. 280 to 299, that member may not engage in a discussion at
10 a board meeting or participate in a board decision on any matter that substantially
11 relates to the permit or license, except that this restriction does not apply with
12 respect to a permit or license held or applied for by an agency, department, or
13 subdivision of this state.

14 ***b2221/3.67* SECTION 1038dm.** 23.13 of the statutes is amended to read:

15 **23.13 Governor to be informed.** The board of commissioners of public lands
16 and, the department of natural resources, and the department of forestry shall
17 furnish to the governor upon the governor's request a copy of any paper, document,
18 or record in their respective offices and give the governor orally such information as
19 the governor may call for.

20 ***b0477/2.1* SECTION 1038g.** 23.14 (title) of the statutes is amended to read:

21 **23.14 (title) Approval Procedures required before new lands acquired.**

22 ***b0477/2.1* SECTION 1038m.** 23.14 of the statutes is renumbered 23.14 (1).

23 ***b2221/3.68* SECTION 1038p.** 23.14 (1) of the statutes, as affected by 2001
24 Wisconsin Act (this act), is amended to read:

1 23.14 (1) Prior to the initial acquisition of any lands by the department after
2 ~~July 1, 1977, of natural resources or by the department of forestry~~ for any new facility
3 or project, the proposed initial acquisition shall be submitted to the governor for his
4 or her approval. New facilities or projects include, without limitation because of
5 enumeration, state parks, state forests, recreation areas, public shooting, trapping
6 or fishing grounds or waters, fish hatcheries, game farms, forest nurseries,
7 experimental stations, endangered species preservation areas, picnic and camping
8 grounds, hiking trails, cross-country ski trails, bridle trails, nature trails, bicycle
9 trails, snowmobile trails, youth camps, land in the lower Wisconsin state riverway
10 as defined in s. 30.40 (15), natural areas and wild rivers.

11 ***b2061/1.1* SECTION 1038q.** 23.14 (1m) of the statutes is created to read:

12 23.14 (1m) Prior to the acquisition of any land, or interest in land, by the
13 department, the department shall notify in writing each city, village, or town, and
14 each county, in which the land or interest in land is located at least 30 days before
15 the department completes the acquisition.

16 ***b2061/1.1* SECTION 1038qc.** 23.14 (1m) of the statutes, as created by 2001
17 Wisconsin Act ... (this act), is amended to read:

18 23.14 (1m) Prior to the acquisition of any land, or interest in land, by the
19 department of natural resources or the department of forestry, the department of
20 natural resources or the department of forestry shall notify in writing each city,
21 village, or town, and each county, in which the land or interest in land is located at
22 least 30 days before the department completes the acquisition.

23 ***b0477/2.1* SECTION 1038r.** 23.14 (2) of the statutes is created to read:

24 23.14 (2) The department may not acquire any rights in the lands that are
25 included in the Milwaukee county grounds unless the department first notifies the

1 joint committee on finance in writing of the proposed acquisition. If the
2 cochairpersons of the committee do not notify the department within 14 working
3 days after the date of the department's notification that the committee has scheduled
4 a meeting to review the proposed acquisition, the department may acquire the
5 proposed rights. If, within 14 working days after the date of the department's
6 notification, the cochairpersons of the committee notify the department that the
7 committee has scheduled a meeting to review the proposed acquisition, the
8 department may acquire the rights only upon approval of the committee.

9 *b2221/3.69* SECTION 1038sam. 23.14 (2) of the statutes, as created by 2001
10 Wisconsin Act (this act), is amended to read:

11 23.14 (2) The department of forestry may not acquire any rights in the lands
12 that are included in the Milwaukee county County grounds unless the department
13 first notifies the joint committee on finance in writing of the proposed acquisition.
14 If the cochairpersons of the committee do not notify the department within 14
15 working days after the date of the department's notification that the committee has
16 scheduled a meeting to review the proposed acquisition, the department may acquire
17 the proposed rights. If, within 14 working days after the date of the department's
18 notification, the cochairpersons of the committee notify the department that the
19 committee has scheduled a meeting to review the proposed acquisition, the
20 department may acquire the rights only upon approval of the committee.

21 *b0763/1.1* SECTION 1038saq. 23.145 of the statutes is created to read:

22 **23.145 Acquisition of land in the Chiwaukee Prairie-Carol Beach**
23 **National Natural Landmark.** The department may not promulgate a rule or
24 otherwise establish a policy that imposes a specified maximum purchase price per
25 parcel or per acre for real property that the department acquires that is located

1 within the boundaries of the Chiwaukee Prairie–Carol Beach National Natural
2 Landmark.

3 *b2221/3.69* SECTION 1038sb. 23.15 (title) of the statutes is amended to read:

4 23.15 (title) Sale of certain state-owned lands under the jurisdiction
5 ~~of the department of natural resources.~~

6 *b2221/3.69* SECTION 1038sc. 23.15 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

7 23.15 (1) The natural resources board may sell, at public or private sale, lands
8 real property and structures owned by the state that are under the jurisdiction of the
9 department of natural resources ~~when~~ if the natural resources board determines
10 that ~~said lands~~ the real property and structures are no longer necessary for the
11 state's use for conservation purposes and, ~~if real property,~~ the real property is not the
12 subject of a petition under s. 16.375 (2).

13 *b2221/3.69* SECTION 1038sd. 23.15 (1m) of the statutes is created to read:

14 23.15 (1m) The secretary of forestry may sell, at public or private sale, real
15 property and structures owned by the state that are under the jurisdiction of the
16 department of forestry if the department of forestry determines that the real
17 property and structures are no longer necessary for the state's use for conservation
18 purposes and the real property is not the subject of a petition under s. 16.375 (2). The
19 department of forestry may not perform any act on land in the state forests under its
20 jurisdiction that is being held for sale if the act will diminish the sale value of the
21 land.

22 *b2221/3.69* SECTION 1038se. 23.15 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

23 23.15 (2) ~~Said~~ The natural resources board and the secretary of forestry shall
24 present to the governor a full and complete report of the lands to be sold, the reason
25 for the sale, the price for which ~~said~~ the lands should be sold ~~together with, and an~~

1 application for the their sale of the same. The governor shall thereupon make such
2 investigation as the governor deems necessary respecting said lands to be sold may
3 investigate and approve or disapprove such the application. If the governor shall
4 approve the same, approves the application for the sale, the governor shall issue a
5 permit shall be issued by the governor for such the sale on the terms set forth in the
6 application.

7 *b2221/3.69* SECTION 1038sf. 23.15 (3) of the statutes is amended to read:

8 23.15 (3) Upon completion of such a sale of land under the jurisdiction of the
9 department of natural resources, the chairperson and secretary of the natural
10 resources board, or the secretary of natural resources, if the secretary is duly
11 authorized by the natural resources board, shall execute such the necessary
12 instruments as ~~are necessary~~ to transfer title and ~~the natural resources board or its~~
13 ~~duly authorized agents~~ shall deliver the same instruments to the purchaser upon
14 payment of the amount set forth in the application. Upon completion of a sale of land
15 under the jurisdiction of the department of forestry, the secretary of forestry shall
16 execute the necessary instruments to transfer title and shall deliver the instruments
17 to the purchaser upon payment of the amount set forth in the application.

18 *b2221/3.69* SECTION 1038sg. 23.15 (4) of the statutes is amended to read:

19 23.15 (4) ~~Said~~ The natural resources board effecting the sale of any such lands
20 and structures shall, upon receiving payment therefor, under sub. (3), shall deposit
21 the funds moneys received in the conservation fund to be used exclusively for the
22 purpose of purchasing other areas of land for the ~~creating~~ creation and ~~establishing~~
23 establishment of public hunting and fishing grounds, and wildlife and fish refuges,
24 southern state forests, and state parks and for land in the lower Wisconsin state
25 riverway as defined in s. 30.40 (15).

1 ***b2221/3.69* SECTION 1038sh.** 23.15 (4m) of the statutes is created to read:

2 23.15 (4m) The secretary of forestry, upon receiving payment under sub. (3),
3 shall deposit the moneys received in the forestry fund to be used exclusively for the
4 purpose of purchasing other areas of land for the creation and establishment of areas
5 in the state forests.

6 ***b2221/3.69* SECTION 1038si.** 23.15 (5) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

7 23.15 (5) (a) In this subsection, “surplus land” means land under the
8 jurisdiction of the department ~~which~~ of natural resources or the department of
9 forestry that is unused and not needed for department that department’s operations
10 or that is not included in the that department’s plan for construction or development.

11 ***b2221/3.69* SECTION 1038sj.** 23.15 (5) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

12 23.15 (5) (b) Biennially, ~~beginning on January 1, 1984,~~ the department of
13 natural resources and the department of forestry shall each submit to the state
14 building commission and the joint committee on finance an inventory of surplus land
15 containing the description, location, and fair market value of each parcel.

16 ***b2221/3.69* SECTION 1038sk.** 23.15 (5) (c) of the statutes is created to read:

17 23.15 (5) (c) The department of natural resources and the department of
18 forestry shall notify the department of administration of the intention to sell any
19 surplus lands under the jurisdiction of the respective department so that the
20 department of administration may ensure that the sale is in compliance with federal
21 law.

22 ***-1335/7.43* SECTION 1039.** 23.175 (1) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

23 23.175 (1) (b) “State agency” means any office, department, agency, institution
24 of higher education, association, society or other body in state government created
25 or authorized to be created by the constitution or any law which is entitled to expend

1 moneys appropriated by law, including any authority created under ch. 231, 233 or,
2 234, or 237 but not including the legislature or the courts.

3 ***b2221/3.70* SECTION 1039aj.** 23.175 (3m) of the statutes is amended to read:

4 **23.175 (3m) ALLOCATION BETWEEN APPROPRIATIONS.** For purposes of sub. (3) (b),
5 the department shall determine how the moneys being expended are to be allocated
6 from the appropriations under s. 20.866 (2) (ta) and (tz). The moneys expended from
7 the appropriation under s. 20.866 (2) (ta) shall be subject to the agreement under s.
8 23.0917 (4r). The department may not allocate or expend any moneys from the
9 appropriation under s. 20.866 (2) (ta) before July 1, 2000.

10 ***b0634/2.1* SECTION 1039b.** 23.193 of the statutes is created to read:

11 **23.193 Acquisition of certain lands purchased by the board of**
12 **commissioners of public lands.** (1) If the board of commissioners of public lands
13 invests moneys in the purchase of land under s. 24.61 (2) (a) 10., the department,
14 within 5 years after the date of purchase, may offer to exchange land that is currently
15 owned by the state and that is under the jurisdiction of the department for the land
16 purchased under s. 24.61 (2) (a) 10. The value of the land offered for exchange by the
17 department shall be of approximately equal value, as defined in s. 24.09 (1) (bm).

18 (2) If the department fails to make such an offer under sub. (1) within the
19 required time period, the department shall pay the board of commissioners of public
20 lands an amount that equals the fair market value of the land and the board shall
21 transfer jurisdiction over any land purchased under s. 24.61 (2) (a) 10. to the
22 department.

23 (3) Section 23.14 does not apply to any land over which the department
24 acquires jurisdiction under this section. Section 23.15 does not apply to any land
25 offered for exchange or exchanged by the department under this section.

1 ***b0955/1.1* SECTION 1039br.** 23.197 (1) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

2 23.197 (1) (a) From the appropriation under s. 20.866 (2) (ta) or (tz) or both, the
3 department shall provide funding to the city of Racine for a multipurpose pathway
4 along the Root River. The amount provided by the department may not exceed the
5 amount that equals the matching contribution for the pathway made by the city of
6 Racine or ~~\$750,000~~ \$1,125,000, whichever is less.

7 ***b2058/1.8* SECTION 1039bm.** 23.197 (2m) of the statutes is created to read:

8 23.197 (2m) KICKAPOO VALLEY RESERVE; VISITOR CENTER. From the appropriation
9 under s. 20.866 (2) (ta), the department shall provide \$2,370,000 to the Kickapoo
10 reserve management board for construction of a visitor center and administration
11 building at the Kickapoo valley reserve. For purposes of s. 23.0917, moneys provided
12 from the appropriation under s. 20.866 (2) (ta) shall be treated as moneys obligated
13 from either or both of the subprograms under s. 23.0917 (3) and (4).

14 ***b2074/1.1* SECTION 1039bv.** 23.197 (3) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

15 23.197 (3) (a) From the appropriation under s. 20.866 (2) (ta) or (tz) or both, the
16 department shall provide the amount necessary for the development of a
17 recreational area on Keyes Lake in Florence County, but the amount may not exceed
18 ~~\$125,000~~ \$175,000.

19 ***b0599/6.25* SECTION 1039c.** 23.197 (3m) of the statutes is renumbered
20 23.197 (3m) (a) and amended to read:

21 23.197 (3m) (a) From the appropriation under s. 20.866 (2) (ta) or (tz) or both,
22 the department shall provide funding in the amount of \$50,000 to rebuild ~~a~~ the
23 chalet at Rib Mountain State Park. The department shall determine how the moneys
24 being provided under this ~~subsection~~ paragraph will be allocated between the
25 appropriations under s. 20.866 (2) (ta) and (tz). For purposes of s. 23.0915 (1),

1 moneys provided from the appropriation under s. 20.866 (2) (tz) shall be treated as
2 moneys expended for general property development. For purposes of s. 23.0917,
3 moneys provided from the appropriation under s. 20.866 (2) (ta) shall be treated as
4 moneys obligated under the subprogram for property development and local
5 assistance.

6 ***b0593/6.25* SECTION 1039d.** 23.197 (3m) (b) of the statutes is created to read:

7 23.197 (3m) (b) In addition to the amounts provided under par. (a), the
8 department shall provide, from the appropriation under s. 20.866 (2) (ta), funding
9 in the amount of \$1,000,000 to reconstruct the chalet at Rib Mountain State Park for
10 which funding is provided under par. (a). For purposes of s. 23.0917, moneys
11 provided under this paragraph shall be treated as moneys obligated under either or
12 both of the subprograms under s. 23.0917 (3) and (4).

13 ***b1008/2.1* SECTION 1039fm.** 23.197 (5r) of the statutes is created to read:

14 23.197 (5r) HILLSBORO; CAMPING AND RECREATIONAL AREA. From the
15 appropriation under s. 20.866 (2) (ta), the department shall provide \$60,000 to the
16 city of Hillsboro for the development of a camping and recreational area near the
17 Hillsboro and Northeastern Spur Trail in the city of Hillsboro. For purposes of s.
18 23.0917, moneys provided from the appropriation under s. 20.866 (2) (ta) shall be
19 treated as moneys obligated from the subprogram for property development and
20 local assistance. Notwithstanding s. 23.09 (20) (b), the 50% matching requirement
21 under s. 23.09 (20) (b) does not apply to the state aid provided under this subsection.

22 ***b0643/3.1* SECTION 1039k.** 23.197 (6m) of the statutes is created to read:

23 23.197 (6m) PLOVER RIVER; CONSERVATION EASEMENTS. From the appropriation
24 under s. 20.866 (2) (ta), the department shall provide \$135,000 to acquire
25 conservation easements along the Plover River in Marathon County and Portage

1 County. For the purposes of s. 23.0917, moneys provided under this subsection from
2 the appropriation under s. 20.866 (2) (ta) shall be treated as moneys obligated under
3 the subprogram for land acquisition.

4 ***b0999/1.1* SECTION 1039km.** 23.197 (6r) of the statutes is created to read:

5 23.197 (6r) MILWAUKEE COUNTY; BEACH DEVELOPMENT. From the appropriation
6 under s. 20.866 (2) (ta), the department shall provide \$648,100 to Milwaukee County
7 to redevelop the beach at Grant Park in Milwaukee County. For purposes of s.
8 23.0917, moneys provided from the appropriation under s. 20.866 (2) (ta) shall be
9 treated as moneys obligated from the subprogram for property development and
10 local assistance. The requirements for matching contributions under s. 23.09 (20)
11 (b) shall apply to the state aid provided under this subsection.

12 ***b0644/3.1* SECTION 1039m.** 23.197 (7) of the statutes is created to read:

13 23.197 (7) MENASHA; SKATEBOARD PARK. From the appropriation under s. 20.866
14 (2) (ta), during the fiscal biennium 2001–03 the department shall provide \$25,000
15 to the city of Menasha for the purchase of land to be used for a skateboard park
16 facility in Winnebago County. For purposes of s. 23.0917, moneys provided under
17 this subsection from the appropriation under s. 20.866 (2) (ta) shall be treated as
18 moneys obligated under the subprogram for land acquisition.

19 ***b0599/6.25* SECTION 1039n.** 23.197 (7m) of the statutes is created to read:

20 23.197 (7m) WISCONSIN AGRICULTURAL STEWARDSHIP INITIATIVE FACILITY. From
21 the appropriation under s. 20.866 (2) (ta), the department shall provide funding in
22 the amount of \$1,000,000 for the Wisconsin agricultural stewardship initiative at the
23 University of Wisconsin–Platteville and the University of Wisconsin–Madison, to
24 construct a facility to be used for conducting research and for training farmers
25 concerning the development of sound environmental farming practices. For

1 purposes of s. 23.0917, moneys provided under this subsection shall be treated as
2 moneys obligated under either or both of the subprograms under s. 23.0917 (3) and
3 (4).

4 ***b0593/6.25* SECTION 1039p.** 23.197 (8) of the statutes is created to read:

5 23.197 (8) STATE FAIR PARK CONSTRUCTION. From the appropriation under s.
6 20.866 (2) (ta), the department shall provide \$2,000,000 for projects that are
7 approved by the state fair park board. For purposes of s. 23.0917, moneys provided
8 under this subsection shall be treated as moneys obligated under either or both of
9 the subprograms under s. 23.0917 (3) and (4).

10 ***b0647/3.2* SECTION 1039s.** 23.197 (8m) of the statutes is created to read:

11 23.197 (8m) CONSERVATION LAW ENFORCEMENT MUSEUM. From the appropriation
12 under s. 20.866 (2) (ta), the department shall provide funding in the amount of
13 \$200,000 for the development of a conservation law enforcement museum.
14 Expenditures under this subsection shall be made in a manner such that, for every
15 \$1 received by the department from private grants, gifts, or bequests for the
16 development of the museum, \$1 will be expended from the moneys under this
17 subsection. For the purposes of s. 23.0917, moneys provided under this subsection
18 from the appropriation under s. 20.866 (2) (ta) shall be treated as moneys obligated
19 under the subprogram for property development and local assistance.

20 ***b2058/1.11* SECTION 1039t.** 23.197 (9) of the statutes is created to read:

21 23.197 (9) PRAIRIE RIVER RESTORATION. From the appropriation under s. 20.866
22 (2) (ta), the department shall provide funding to the city of Merrill in the amount of
23 \$450,000 for a project to restore an area on the exposed bed of the former flowage on
24 the Prairie River. For the purposes of s. 23.0917, moneys provided under this

1 subsection from the appropriation under s. 20.866 (2) (ta) shall be treated as moneys
2 obligated under the subprogram for property development and local assistance.

3 ***b0593/6.25* SECTION 1039w.** 23.198 (1) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

4 23.198 (1) (a) From the appropriation under s. 20.866 (2) (ta), the department
5 shall provide up to ~~\$1,500,000~~ \$4,500,000 for the development of ~~a state park that~~
6 ~~will provide access to Lake Michigan in the city of Milwaukee~~ Lakeshore State Park.
7 For purposes of s. 23.0917, moneys provided under this paragraph shall be treated
8 as moneys obligated under either or both of the subprogram for property
9 development and local assistance subprograms under s. 23.0917 (3) and (4).

10 ***-0313/2.1* SECTION 1040.** 23.235 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

11 23.235 (2) Except as provided in sub. (3), no person may sell, offer for sale,
12 distribute, plant, or cultivate any nuisance weed multiflora rose or seeds thereof.

13 ***-0313/2.2* SECTION 1041.** 23.235 (4) of the statutes is repealed.

14 ***-0313/2.3* SECTION 1042.** 23.24 of the statutes is created to read:

15 **23.24 Aquatic plants. (1) DEFINITIONS.** In this section:

16 (a) “Aquaculture” has the meaning given in s. 93.01 (1d).

17 (b) “Aquatic plant” means a planktonic, submergent, emergent, or floating-leaf
18 plant or any part thereof.

19 (c) “Control” means to cut, remove, destroy, or suppress.

20 (d) “Cultivate” means to intentionally maintain the growth or existence of.

21 (e) “Distribute” means to sell, offer to sell, distribute for no consideration, or
22 offer to distribute for no consideration.

23 (f) “Introduce” means to plant, cultivate, stock, or release.

24 (g) “Invasive aquatic plant” means an aquatic plant that is designated under
25 sub. (2) (b) 1.